
 

 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

EASTERN AREA COMMITTEE MEETING 
 
Date: Thursday, 15 December 2022 
Time:  7.00 pm 
Venue: West Faversham Community Centre, Bysing Wood Road, Faversham ME13 7RH 

 
Membership: 
 
Councillors Lloyd Bowen, Alastair Gould, Mike Henderson, Carole Jackson, Denise Knights 
(Chair), Ben J Martin, Hannah Perkin, Julian Saunders (Vice-Chair), David Simmons, 
Eddie Thomas, Tim Valentine and Mike Whiting. 
 
Quorum = 4. 
  
 

 
  Pages 

Information about this meeting 
Members of the press and public can listen to this meeting live. Details of how to 
join the meeting will be added to the website by Wednesday 14 December 
2022. 
 
Recording and Privacy Notice  
 
Swale Borough Council is committed to protecting the security of your personal 
information. As data controller we process data in accordance with the Data 
Protection Act 2018 and the UK General Data Protection Regulation. 
 
This meeting may be recorded. The recording will be retained in accordance 
with the Council’s data retention policy and may be published on the Council’s 
website. By entering the chamber and by speaking at a meeting, whether in 
person or online, you are consenting to being recorded and to the recording 
being published. 
 
When joining a meeting online, your username will be visible to others in 
attendance. In joining the meeting you are consenting to us processing your 
username. You may use a pseudonym as your username but the use of an 
inappropriate name may lead to removal from the meeting. 
 
If you have any questions about how we look after your personal information or 
your rights under the legislation, please email 
dataprotectionofficer@swale.gov.uk.  
 

 

1.  Emergency Evacuation Procedure 
 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:dataprotectionofficer@swale.gov.uk


 

 

Visitors and members of the public who are unfamiliar with the building 

and procedures are advised that:  

a)     No fire drill is planned during the meeting.  If the alarm sounds 
please leave the building quickly without collecting any of your 
possessions, using the doors signed as fire escapes, and assemble 
outside where directed. 

(b)    Await instructions before re-entering the building. 

(c)    Anyone who requires assistance in evacuating the building should 
make officers aware of any special needs so that suitable 
arrangements may be made in the event of an emergency. 

  
2.  Apologies for Absence 

 

 

3.  Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillors should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or 

other material benefits for themselves, their families or friends.  

 

The Chair will ask Members if they have any disclosable pecuniary 

interests (DPIs) or disclosable non-pecuniary interests (DNPIs) to declare 

in respect of items on the agenda. Members with a DPI in an item must 

leave the room for that item and may not participate in the debate or vote.   

 

Aside from disclosable interests, where a fair-minded and informed 

observer would think there was a real possibility that a Member might be 

biased or predetermined on an item, the Member should declare this and 

leave the room while that item is considered.  

 

Members who are in any doubt about interests, bias or predetermination 

should contact the monitoring officer for advice prior to the meeting. 

  

 

4.  Minutes 
 
To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 29 September 
2022 (Minute Nos. 339 – 347) as correct records.  
  

 

5.  Matters arising from previous meetings 
 

5 - 12 

6.  Active Travel Fund Tranche 4 
 

 

7.  Town to Parishes project update 
 

 

8.  Public Forum 
 

 

9.  Local issues to be raised 
 

 

10.  Update on work plan 
 

13 - 34 

11.  Matters referred to Area Committee by Service Committees 
 

 

12.  Matters referred to Service Committee Chairs for consideration 
 

https://services.swale.gov.uk/meetings/documents/g3698/Printed%20minutes%20Thursday%2029-Sep-2022%2019.00%20Eastern%20Area%20Committee.pdf?T=1


 

 

 
 

Issued on Monday, 5 December 2022 
 
 
 
The reports included in Part I of this agenda can be made available in 
alternative formats. For further information about this service, or to arrange 
for special facilities to be provided at the meeting, please contact 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES on 01795 417330. To find out more about the work 
of the Area Committees, please visit www.swale.gov.uk 

 
 
 
Chief Executive, Swale Borough Council, 

Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT 



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 3 
 

Matters Arising 

Eastern Area Committee Meeting 15 December 2022 – Matters arising 

No. Item Background Update on actions 

1. Bus consultation 
project 

At the December 2021 meeting, Eastern Area 
Committee Members agreed to award £10,000.00 to 
undertake a public consultation on local bus services.  
Due to SBC resource issues, there was a 
recommendation by the Head of Regeneration and 
Economic Development to explore an alternative 
delivery option such as project management by a 
town or parish council. 
 
At the Area Committee meeting on 22 March 2022, 
Members questioned if a parish or town council would 
have the resources to carry out this consultation and 
felt that it would be better for SBC to run this project, 
which was of huge importance to the residents of the 
Eastern Area. 
 
After investigating various options for delivery of this 
project, it was concluded there would be a limited 
officer resource available, through the Economic 
Development Support Officer.   
 
A specification for the work will need to be drawn-up 
with input from Councillors Gould, Saunders and 
Whiting and the work commissioned, potentially 
through an add-on to the existing contract with Project 
Centre, which is working on the pedestrianisation 
project and therefore already have experience of the 

The Economic Development Support 
Officer has drafted a specification for 
the commissioning of a consultant to 
design and manage a public 
consultation to find out what residents 
would like to see from local bus 
services and to produce a summary 
report on the findings of the 
consultation.  The specification has 
been devised in consultation with 
Councillors Gould, Saunders and 
Whiting, and officers from Swale 
Borough Council and Kent County 
Council.  The specification has also 
been sent to the local bus providers in 
case they have any comments to help 
inform the proposed work. 
 
The specification will be sent by the 
Economic Development Support 
Officer to consultants in December to 
identify a price for the work.  Once a 
suitable price has been identified and 
agreed, the work will be commissioned 
with the consultation aiming to 
commence in January 2023. 

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 5



Page 2 of 3 
 

locality.  This would expedite the speed with which it 
can be progressed.   

2. Flooding in the 
Whitstable Road area 
and other parts of 
Faversham 

Members noted the update provided at the 
September 2022 meeting and commented that 
Southern Water’s (SW) response to the capacity 
issues raised was not satisfactory.  In particular, their 
commitment to significantly reduce the frequency of 
CSO (Combined Sewer Overflows) discharges by 
2030 seemed a long way off.  A Member said that 
they had a duty to ensure new houses had sufficient 
sewage capacity.  A Member raised the issue of 
sewage discharges in the Faversham Creek area.  
Councillor Julian Saunders in his capacity of Vice-
Chair said he was happy to respond to SW on behalf 
of Eastern Area Committee and include the 
comments made. 
 
A member of the public asked for an update on the 
water run-off issues at Faversham Recreation 
Ground.  The Head of Environment and Leisure 
advised that Swale Borough Council and Kent County 
Council would be carrying out some trial digs with a 
view to installing larger soak-aways.  They would also 
be looking at other mechanisms to slow water run-off 
in Park Road and Whitstable Road. 
 

Please see Appendix 1 for an update. 

3. ASB issues in new 
developments 

A member of the public spoke about anti-social 
behaviour problems in new developments, in 
particular Breeze Meadow, Pugg Mill Close, Brick 
Earth Mews, Flattie Way and Bond Close.  She had 
tried to set up a Neighbourhood Watch but had been 
unsuccessful.  Councillor Ben J Martin referred her to 

This matter has been reported to Steph 
Curtis.  She advised that the number of 
incidents reported to the Police and 
CSU for that area were minimal but 
they will now keep an eye out for 
further reports so the team can 

P
age 6



Page 3 of 3 
 

My Community Voice where Kent Police shared 
details for setting up Neighbourhood Watch schemes 
which could be found via this link: 
https://members.mycommunityvoicekent.co.uk/Login?
ReturnUrl=%2F.  The Chair advised that all incidents 
should be reported via 101 as it would trigger 
involvement of relevant agencies who would develop 
an action plan.  Issues should also be raised with the 
Ward councillor/s for the area. 
 

determine what wider action can be 
taken. 

4. Fresh-water leaks Councillor Carole Jackson advised there had been a 
number of fresh-water leaks which had not been 
repaired and asked how they could be reported as 
they would become dangerous in the winter during 
freezing conditions.  The Vice-Chair agreed to write to 
South-East Water to report the issue. 

The Vice-Chair has written to South-
East Water. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 7

https://members.mycommunityvoicekent.co.uk/Login?ReturnUrl=%2F
https://members.mycommunityvoicekent.co.uk/Login?ReturnUrl=%2F


T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

Matters arising 

Update on Flooding in Whitstable Road and other parts of 

Faversham 

The Head of Environment & Leisure has provided the following update: 

Ground investigations works commenced on 5 December for proposed 

additional works. The goal of this is to see whether it will be viable to install 

additional soakaways at the edge of the recreation ground to reduce the 

amount of run-off which comes from Park Road in particular. It will also help 

with detailing any works within the park that could reduce the run-off from the 

pathways and car park. 

 

Please find below the correspondence between Cllr Julian Saunders and Southern 

Water.  These are set out in chronological order: 

 

Email from Cllr Julian Saunders to Sue Cobb – 25 October 2022 

Sue  

Thanks for your responses to previous concerns raised. I reported your response of 

20 July in relation to the capacity of the sewerage system in Faversham and future 

plans for improvement back to the Swale Borough Council Eastern Area Committee 

meeting on 29 September.  

Members' general view was that the response was unsatisfactory and they asked me 

as the Vice Chair to write to you again to express their concerns.  

In particular they were concerned that the commitment to significantly reduce the 

frequency of CSO discharges was a long way off, not until 2030.  As you know the 

current inadequate arrangements require sewage discharges into Faversham Creek 

when there has been heavy rain and have resulted in sewage overflows into local 

streets and domestic systems on some occasions.   

They were also concerned that although Southern Water you have determined that 

future sewage network capacity may be an issue in the Faversham area there 

appears to be no funded plan for an upgrade at the moment.  

The Committee would be keen to have further information on how you will tackle the 

problems caused by CSOs and improve sewage network capacity locally and clearer 

commitments on the timescales for tackling these issues.   

Regards   

Cllr Julian Saunders 

 

Page 9



Email from Sue Cobb, Southern Water to Cllr Saunders – 9 November 2022 

Good afternoon Julian 

My apologies that it's taken me a couple of weeks to come back to you. I've split my 

response into two parts below.  

 CSOs 

If we were to block up all storm overflows today, the next time the system was to 

become overwhelmed, wastewater would have nowhere to go but back up into 

people’s homes and onto roads, causing major flooding and pollution for the 

community. We know that any untreated sewage going into our seas and rivers is 

unacceptable. That is why we’re working hard to stop that happening, investing, and 

acting now. This will take many years and billions of pounds to resolve, but we are 

determined to achieve this as quickly as possible for our customers.   

We have drafted our regional plan, which will be published next year, which has 

analysed the root cause of storm overflows across all our catchments. Many of the 

solutions required to ensure we have a sustainable system fit-for-the-future, are 

within the community e.g. Sustainable drainage along highways, rainwater 

harvesting on domestic and commercial properties, and removing hectares of hard 

surfaces which sees large volumes of rainwater runoff into our systems. Cross-

industry partnership is therefore going to be critical. We will of course be investing in 

our infrastructure and community schemes, to solve the challenges long term. 

 We welcome Defra’s Storm Overflows Discharge Reduction Plan, which was 

published in September 2022, which sets targets for the water industry to eliminate 

storm overflows by 2050 (except for unusually heavy rainfall). We are already 

leading the way with some of the targets outlined. For example, we are already 

hitting the average number of spills per outfall per year, that other water companies 

are only aiming to achieve by 2025. We’re therefore confident that we’ll not only 

meet Govt. targets, but that we’ll likely exceed them. 

We’re currently working with the regulators and our investors to understand if we can 

accelerate our plans, as we want to go quicker than targets set by Defra. 

Local sewage network 

 As part of the catchment review process, models for the Faversham catchment were 

reviewed. The outcome of the review was that the model requires updating with new 

flow surveys so that the model replicate the actual flow adequately.  

 This will involve installing flow monitors in strategic locations in the sewers within the 

catchment to understand the volume of flow being drained into the public sewers 

during dry weather as well as during storm conditions; this can generally take 12 

weeks on average but can be longer if more data is required.  

The flow survey data will be used to calibrate the model which will then be used to 

develop options to accommodate the catchment growth. Flow surveys and model 

update can take up to 6 months to complete so this is likely to be summer 2023. 

Page 10



As soon as we have an update on the results of the flow surveys and model update, 

we will let you know. 

I hope this information is helpful. 

Best wishes 

Sue 

Sue Cobb 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Cover Report for Eastern Area Committee Funding Scheme 
– round two 
 
 
Introduction 
The Eastern Area Committee has been allocated a total of £40,000.00 for the 
financial year 2022/23.  At the Eastern Area Committee Meeting on Thursday 29 
September 2022, £27,237.00 of funding was allocated.  Committee Members agreed 
that the unallocated funding of £12,763.00 should be made available for external 
organisations via a second funding round with a focus on the cost-of-living crisis. 
 
The process proposed by the Area Committee Review Working Group, and agreed 
by Area Committee Chairs, was to carry out a scoring process on applications 
received for Area Committee Funding.  The deadline for the second round of 
applications was Thursday 3 November 2022 and £36,893.00 of bids were received 
for consideration by the Committee.  This means that there are £24,130.00 worth of 
bids in excess of allocation.  All applications have been assessed for eligibility by 
officers and a scoring process carried out.   
 
Three impartial officers have independently considered each application and given 
them a score against the criteria set out in the Applicant Guidance Notes.  Each 
criteria was scored as follows High – 3, Adequate – 2, Limited – 1, None – 0.  All 
three officer scores were added together and presented to Committee Members in 
Appendix 1.  Also attached to this paper is the summary report on applications 
received which contains the full text provided by applicants describing 
projects/activities (Appendix 2). Committee Members were given the opportunity to 
challenge the scores and request a review.  No challenges were received. 
 
 

Proposal 
Having considered the summary report and supporting papers, along with the 
scoring and background information, officers would like to submit 4 options for 
allocating funds for the Committee to vote on. 

Part of the reason for the Working Group’s recommendation that impartial officers 
should score bids based on criteria agreed in advance by Members was to create a 
degree of separation between the Committee’s decision-making on the one hand 
and Members with a disclosable interest in a bidder (e.g. involvement with a 
community group or membership of a parish council) on the other. Members who 
have a disclosable non-pecuniary interest in any of the bids should declare it in the 
usual way and will be able to vote, as long as the voting is on the basis of the 
presented options, as this is unlikely to result in any Member having a bias. 
However, in the event that the Committee agrees to vote on amendments to these 
options, favouring (and by implication disfavouring) certain bids, Members with a 
disclosable non-pecuniary interest in the favoured bid(s) should not take part in the 
vote. 

 
Page 13

Agenda Item 10



 
 

 

Option 1: 

This option would allow the two highest scoring applications, who both scored 24, to 
receive 50.725% funding from the scheme.  That would leave £0.60 of funds 
unallocated at year end.  This will ensure the annual allocation is not exceeded: 

Applicant Score Funding 
request 

Proposed 
allocation 

Faversham Umbrella – EAC031 
 

24 £12,700.00 £6,442.07 

Brogdale CIC – EAC035 
 

24 £12,460.00 £6,320.33 

Abbey Physic Community Garden – 
EAC033 

23 £5,600.00 £0 

Painters Forstal Community Association – 
EAC030 

20 £1,543.00 £0 

Faversham Salvation Army – EAC034 
 

20 £1,150.00 £0 

Friendly Faces of Kent – EAC029 
 

19 £3,040.00 £0 

Teynham Parish Council – EAC032 
(linked to project ref EAC029) 

19 £400.00 £0 

Total £12,762.40 

 

Option 2: 

This option would allow the three highest scoring applications, to receive 41.492% 
funding from the scheme.  That would leave £0.07 of funds unallocated at year end.  
This will ensure the annual allocation is not exceeded: 

Applicant Score Funding 
request 

Proposed 
allocation 

Faversham Umbrella – EAC031 
 

24 £12,700.00 £5,269.48 

Brogdale CIC – EAC035 
 

24 £12,460.00 £5,169.90 

Abbey Physic Community Garden – 
EAC033 

23 £5,600.00 £2,323.55 

Painters Forstal Community Association – 
EAC030 

20 £1,543.00 £0 

Faversham Salvation Army – EAC034 
 

20 £1,150.00 £0 

Friendly Faces of Kent – EAC029 
 

19 £3,040.00 £0 

Teynham Parish Council – EAC032 
(linked to project ref EAC029) 

19 £400.00 £0 

Total £12,762.93 

 

 Page 14



 
 

 

Option 3: 

This option pays out 34.594% to all applicants regardless of their score but ensures 
that all bids receive an award.  That would leave £0.22 of funds unallocated at year 
end.  This will ensure that the annual allocation is not exceeded: 

Applicant Score Funding 
request 

Proposed 
allocation 

Faversham Umbrella – EAC031 
 

24 £12,700.00 £4,393.44 

Brogdale CIC – EAC035 
 

24 £12,460.00 £4,310.41 

Abbey Physic Community Garden – 
EAC033 

23 £5,600.00 £1,937.27 

Painters Forstal Community Association 
– EAC030 

20 £1,543.00 £533.79 

Faversham Salvation Army – EAC034 
 

20 £1,150.00 £397.83 

Friendly Faces of Kent – EAC029 
 

19 £3,040.00 £1,051.66 

Teynham Parish Council – EAC032 
(linked to project ref EAC029) 

19 £400.00 £138.38 

Total £12,762.78 

 

Option 4: 

So that all possible options are presented for Committee Members to vote on, the 
final option is to award no funding to any of the applicants.  As the funding cannot be 
rolled forward to the year 2023/24, the unallocated £12,763.00 of funding would be 
recorded as a saving for 2022/23. 

Eastern Area Committee Members are invited to vote on the above options. 

 
 
 
Janet Dart 
Policy & Engagement Officer 
November 2022 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Applicant Funds requested Support 
interventions 
around the cost-of-
living crisis* 
(more than one 
intevention-3, one 
intervention-2, 
partial intervention-
1, None-0 )

Area of 
geographical 
impact (Majority of 
wards - 3, more 
than one ward - 2, 
one ward - 1)

Contributes to 
achieving Swale's 
Strategic Priority 3 
(All Priorities-3, More 
than one Priority-2, 
one Priority-1, no 
Priorities-0)

Score

Friendly faces of Kent - EAC029 3,040.00£               
8 4 7

19
Painters Forstal Community Association - 
EAC030

1,543.00£               
9 4 7

20
Faversham Umbrella - EAC031 12,700.00£             

9 8 7
24

Teynham Parish Council - EAC032 (linked to 
project ref EAC029)

400.00£                   
8 4 7

19
Abbey Physic Community Garden - EAC033 5,600.00£               

9 7 7
23

Faversham Salvation Army - EAC034 1,150.00£               
6 8 6

20
Brogdale CIC - EAC035 12,460.00£             

9 8 7
24

TOTAL £36,893.00

Examples of eligible projects could include (but are not limited to):
Warm spaces projects (proposals must include risk assessments and safeguarding measures); 
Supporting people to keep warm in their homes and reduce hunger;
School uniform or clothing projects for young people;
Advice and support including finance and mental health; and
Creative or physical activities projects to support wellbeing.

Three officers independently scored the bids against the 
categories set out in the applicants' guidance notes.  

They were added together and a single score shown on 
this sheet.  The highest score for individual categories is 

9. The highest overall achieveable score is 27

APPENDIX 1

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

APPENDIX 2 

Eastern Area Committee Funding Scheme  

Summary of applications received for the December 2022 meeting 

Area Committee’s allocation for 2022-23 - £40,000.00 

At the Eastern Area Committee meeting in September 2022 £27,237.00 was allocated. 

 

Available to allocate at the December 2022 meeting - £12,763.00 

(Applications arranged in the order they were received) 

 

Reference: EAC029 

Organisation: Friendly Faces of Kent 

Applicant Name: Lesley Nowell-Hitchcock - CEO 

Status of 
organisation: 

Unincorporated Association (Community Group) 

Details of 
project/activity: 

We currently use the Teynham Community Hall for one of our 
Friendly Space groups, for members in the local community to 
come together and form friendships. We have been asked by 
the Teynham Community Hall Trustees if we could help them 
deliver a 16 week warm hub over the winter period. This will 
give local residents a warm space to come have a hot drink, 
soup and a roll. It will be a space to stay warm without the fear 
of heating costs and become a social hub for interaction during 
the colder months, that can particularly lonely for some. The 
project will run for up to 16 weeks on a Tuesday from 10.00 to 
14.00. 

Further information Risk assessment and safeguarding policy has been provided. 
 
The project will benefit residents from Teynham, surrounding 
villages and Sittingbourne. 

Quote provided A detailed estimate has been provided 

Total project 
expenditure: 

Refreshments - £640.00 
Staff cost – support working, volunteer, admin - £2,720.00 
Total project expenditure - £3,360.00 

Total project income 
(addition sources of 
income including 
cash/in kind): 

Donations - £320.00 

Funding request: £3,040 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



 
 

Reference: EAC030 

Organisation: Painters Forstal Community Association 

Applicant Name: Professor Ben Bennett – Chair of Trustees 

Status of 
organisation: 

Registered Charity 

Details of 
project/activity: 

Painters Forstal – community hunger heroes  
 
Background - The Parish of Painters Forstal and Ospringe lost 
access to its shared community hall in 2017.  Since then, the 
community has been working hard to build a new, modern, 
flexible, accessible, low carbon facility on a plot of land in the 
centre of the village gifted by a generous resident.  We have 
formed a Charity, Painters Forstal Community Association 
(PFCA), assessed the needs of our community, received 
planning permission, raised funding from numerous funders and 
community fund-raising and have started building, with an 
expected opening date of May 2023.   
 
The project - PFCA aims to build and run a community hall 
accessible to all and to run activities that enhance health, well-
being and the environment.  The small, isolated community of 
Painters Forstal and Ospringe has significant areas of 
vulnerability and social exclusion.  The parish is within the top 
50% of deprived areas nationally, with evidence of fuel poverty 
(12%), long-term illness (12%) and isolation (9% with no 
personal transport). 
 
PFCA will provide a modern, low carbon, warm, flexible and 
accessible space for a range of activities.  The design 
incorporates a hall and lobby area that can be divided into three 
unique activity spaces.  All will be accessible from a central 
kitchen.  Part of the hall has been designed for safe pre-
school/nursery. 
 
At the heart of this project, and core to its success will be a 
small kitchen designed for maximum access, including 
wheelchairs.  The availability of a community kitchen in Painters 
Forstal opens up the possibility of community organised food 
and nutrition activities. 
 
Activity - The residents of Painters Forstal are struggling to 
make ends meet.  For the lower waged and pensioners, the 
biggest impacts of the cost-of-living crisis have been on heating 
and food bills.  These impact low-income earners 
disproportionately.  
 
PFCA have won a small amount of funding (£500) from the 
Tesco Community Scheme to support a “Feed the Future” 
project.  This will involve a club, led by older members of the 
community, that will meet regularly in the new Community Hall 
to work with groups of younger residents to develop cost 
effective recipe and menu plans.  This Painters Forstal Feed the 

Page 20



 
 

Future Club will meet regularly in the warm and friendly 
environment of the new Hall, building social capital, developing 
generational links and improving welfare and nutrition. 
 
The community intends to target food waste and community 
food collection to support the activity, and to offer free surplus 
food to residents as appropriate.  The community has a catering 
business at its heart (The Alma Pub) who have offered to 
provide professional support to the project including advice on 
food safety compliance. 
 
The team of residents hoping to operate our ‘Painters Forstal 
Feed the Future Club’ are “Hunger Heroes”, hence the project 
title.  These volunteers will give their time, energy and expertise 
to help those in need and to bridge the generational gap that 
currently exists in the community. 
 
To achieve this ambitious aim, we need to fund the equipment 
necessary to run the club.  We are, therefore, requesting 
funding support for a electric range cooker to fit into our new 
kitchen.  A range cooker will allow several club members to 
cook meals concurrently, and therefore provide the opportunity 
for a group to prepare, cook and consume at the same time 
enhancing the social aspect of the activity. 
 
Compliance with the agreed criteria - Area Committee 
Criteria (Eastern).  This project is directly focussed on the cost-
of-living crisis.  It will work to help residents manage the cost of 
providing themselves and their families with nutritious food, thus 
tackling one of the central challenges caused by the crisis.  Our 
new Community Hall is insulated to the highest standards, 
warmed by design through solar gain, and heated by energy 
efficient air source heat pumps.  By attending the club, residents 
will be addressing the food/nutrition and heating cost crises 
together. 
 
Swale Strategic Priority 2.  We believe that this project 
contributes to priorities as follows: 
 
2.1 and 2.2 Contribute to addressing climate change.  As 
part of the ‘Food the Future’ project, our ‘Hunger Heroes” will 
help club members address the energy cost of making nutritious 
meals.  For most residents, this activity will be within walking 
distance, reducing the environmental impact of attending similar 
activities elsewhere.  We are keen, as a next stage if this is 
successful, to move onto a rural community collective food 
buying club to look for greater savings through cooperative 
purchase. 
 
Swale Strategic Priority 3:  Tackling deprivation and creating 
equal opportunity 
 

Page 21



 
 

3.1 and 3.2 Tackling deprivation and equality of opportunity.   
 
The Feed the Future: Hunger Heroes activity will directly 
address some of the root causes of deprivation by addressing 
key aspects of cost of living and nutrition security for the 
poorest/most vulnerable members of our community. 
 

Further information Safeguarding policy has been provided. 
 
The risk assessment will be provided once the hall is complete. 
The hall will be completed in May 2023 so the project will 
commence after that date. 
 
Painters Forstal and Ospringe has a population of around 750 in 
something like 320 households.  PFCA itself has 181 members 
(individuals and households).  The catchment area for our 
project will be much wider than Painters Forstal and Ospringe.  
We are in walking and cycling distance of West Faversham, 
close to the new housing at Perry Court and on a direct ‘line’ 
between smaller communities/villages and Faversham.  We 
expect our activity to be inclusive and to attract participants 
widely. 
 

Quote provided Yes 

Total project 
expenditure: 

1 x Induction hob 100 cm range cooker - £1234.40 
VAT - £308.60 
Total project Expenditure £1,543.00 

Total project income 
(addition sources of 
income including 
cash/in kind): 

Tesco Community Grant contribution to other kitchen equipment 
- £500.00 

Funding request: £1,543.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



 
 
 

Reference: EAC031 

Organisation: Faversham Umbrella 

Applicant Name: Becky Duffy – Centre Manager 

Status of 
organisation: 

Registered Charity 

Details of 
project/activity: 

Faversham Community Networking Group is an initiative born 
this year to bring charities, not for profit groups and other 
supporting organisations together within Faversham and the 
surrounding areas. The idea is to connect so that we utilise our 
expertise and combined knowledge on signposting to offer a 
stronger support network across our community. Within this 
group of 20 plus organisations we have several of us offering 
warm spaces over the coming colder months and know that by 
doing this together we can offer more of a robust structure for 
those that need it.  We also have expertise within our group for 
financial advice, free wellbeing activities, access to mental 
health services and ways of providing free food deeper into 
much needed areas of the community.   
 
Below is list of some of the organisations and what they are 
offering in the main areas set out above.  
 
Faversham Umbrella: Is open Tuesday, Wednesday, and 
Friday 10am-3pm.  At the centre of our community Faversham 
umbrella offers a safe place for everyone in a non-judgemental 
environment.   We offer free well-being activities every day and 
are utilising our space as a warm space during the colder 
months along with hot food. Red Zebra and Fuel and Water 
Swale will be operating out of Faversham Umbrella at least 
once a month to offer further services.   
 
Age UK: Will offer space Monday-Friday 3-5pm offering a warm 
space and hot soup. Premises are situated in the centre of 
town, with ground floor access.  Age UK are also teaming up 
with other partners to offer warm packs to those who needs it, 
that people can take home with them. 
  
West Faversham Community Association: Weekdays is 8.30 
till 10pm and till 5pm at weekends offering a warm space and 
welcoming café. The centre holds many activities throughout 
the day which people are welcome to join (where possible), but 
there will also be a space in which people are able to just come 
and be.  
 
Citizens Advice:  Offer sound financial advice to everyone and 
we hope will be able to increase their presence with a monthly 
workshop in at least one of the buildings above.  
 
FCS Talking Therapies: Signposting to NHS Talking Therapies 
using leaflets, social media, giveaways and monthly visits in at 

Page 23



 
 

least one of the buildings (within the bid) providing access to 
immediate self-referral in support of community mental health 
needs.  
 
FACE (Faversham Assistance Centre): offers gardening and 
decorating to the most vulnerable people of Faversham and 
Sittingbourne. This practical relief allows them to direct their 
finances to other aspects which have become extremely 
challenging, like food or heating. FACE recognises the 
important link between housing and health, especially mental 
health. FACE believes that our work improves the moods and 
quality of life of our clients and the feedback we receive reflects 
this. 
 
Food Friends: Offer warm meals to people within the 
community that are unable to get to the places above for meals.   
 
Red Zebra:  Provides a social prescribing service for adults in 
East Kent helping to link people to non-medical services such 
as voluntary & community groups. The overall aim is to enable 
individuals to take greater control of their health & wellbeing by 
using the resources available & appropriate.  
 

Further information Risk assessments and Safeguarding policies have been 
provided. 
 
The above projects will run from October through to April and 
further if colder weather continues. 
 
Anyone is welcome to attend from Faversham and surrounding 
areas.  People from all over Swale and Thanet attend. 

Quote provided Estimate 

Total project 
expenditure: 

Citizens Advice Age UK – Debt advice outreach - £1,000.00 
FACE – Client support - £1,500 
Talking Therapies – Mental health support - £1,700.00 
Age UK and Faversham West Community Association – Warm 
Spaces £3,000.00 each - £6,000.00 
Faversham Umbrella – Warm Space - £2,500.00 
Total Project Expenditure - £12,700.00 

Total project income 
(addition sources of 
income including 
cash/in kind): 

Each individual organisation within this group will be gathering 
further support to enhance and grow their own offering over the 
coming months.  This is inevitable as we are all aware of the 
hardships our community face and will continue to do so going 
forward, along with further challenges like the cost-of-living 
crisis, and the colder weather.  We hope by displaying a united 
front and submitting our joint application we are showing you 
our commitment to further work together so that we can all 
support our local residents in the best way possible. 

Funding request: £12,700.00 

 

 

Page 24



 
 

Reference: EAC032 

Organisation: Teynham Parish Council 

Applicant Name: Hayley Steel – Parish Clerk 

Status of 
organisation: 

Parish Council 

Details of 
project/activity: 

Warm Bank at Teynham Community Hall 
 
Background - The current rise in the cost of living, in particular 
the cost of energy, will have a significant impact on many 
people across our Parish. The UK Government is taking a 
number of steps to provide support. At a local level, there are a 
number of actions that we can undertake to provide additional 
assistance to our communities. 
 
Proposal 
● Teynham Parish Council have requested that Friendly Faces 
run a warm bank on behalf of the local community. Initially on a 
trial run of 6 weeks. 
● Warm Banks are a way of making sure people have 
somewhere to go where they can spend time without spending 
money they don’t have. 
● Teynham Parish Council will provide the venue (The 
Community Hall, Teynham) at no cost, but is seeking funding to 
cover the cost of the additional heating/lighting. The venue is 
normally unheated when not in use. 
● Friendly Faces will staff and operate the warm bank sessions 
and will offer: 

○ A safe and warm space for local residents, 
- 4 hours, one day a week (on a Tuesday) 
- from late November* to the end of February 
2023* 

○ No charges for any services during this session 
○ Social environment to meet others, if guests wish. 
○ Unlimited tea & coffee 
○ Hot soup & bread rolls at lunch time 
 

* Operational dates will depend on the date of funding 
confirmation. There will be a short lead time to get the 
coordinator in place, the sessions set up and promote the 
sessions to the local community. 
● Working with others 

○ In addition to the warm bank, we will invite other 
organisations (eg medical, advice etc) to use the office 
space to connect with community groups. At the time of 
preparing this application Alzheimer’s and Dementia 
Support Services have offered to attend the session 
once every 3-weeks. 

 
Grant application 
● Linked applications: 

Page 25



 
 

○ This grant application should be considered in 
conjunction with the application from Friendly Faces to 
run the Warm Bank at Teynham. 
 

Teynham Parish Council 
○ If the Friendly Faces grant application is rejected, we 
will be unable to run this service. 

● This grant application (from Teynham Parish Council) covers: 
○ Additional costs for heating, lighting and power at 
£5/hour (estimated). 
○ 4 hrs plus 1hr preheat = £25/session; 16 sessions = 
£400 +VAT 
○ Total amount requested: £400 (excluding VAT) 
 

● Friendly Faces will submit a separate grant application to 
cover the costs for the co-ordinator, and volunteer expenses, 
plus the cost of tea/coffee/soup & bread. 
 

Quote provided Estimate 

Total project 
expenditure: 

Heat, light & power - Additional costs. £5/hr; £25/session; 16 
sessions - £400 + VAT 
 
Total project expenditure - £400.00 

Total project income 
(addition sources of 
income including 
cash/in kind): 

The Parish Council can reclaim the VAT element of the costs. 

Funding request: £400.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



 
 
 

Reference: EAC033 

Organisation: Abbey Physic Community Garden 

Applicant Name: Hannah Temple - Trustee 

Status of 
organisation: 

Registered Charity 

Details of 
project/activity: 

How our Plans Support Swale’s strategic priorities 
Our plans align strongly with Swale Borough Council’s Strategic 
Priority 3 “Tackling deprivation and creating equal opportunities 
for everyone”, particularly its commitment to “Reduce social 
exclusion and enhance opportunities and quality of life” and its 
recent commitment to support interventions that respond to the 
ongoing cost-of-living crisis. 
 
Responding to the cost-of-living crisis 
Our target beneficiaries include many of those who are most 
vulnerable to the impacts of the rising cost of living. As a 
producer of fresh food, a health and wellbeing hub and a 
Foodbank referral agency we are in a strong position to provide 
support for these vulnerable people during this difficult time. 
The interventions we seek to make will have a direct impact on 
reducing the risk that people in our community will go hungry. 
We expect to support at least 200 people in 2023 with their food 
resilience through Foodbank vouchers, greater skills for cooking 
on a budget and direct distribution of food. 
 
Our work also has a very strong positive impact on participants 
mental health and resilience in the face of challenges. Our 
surveys in 2021-22 showed that 92% of Members feel an 
improved mood or sense of wellbeing since coming to the 
Garden, 70% increased confidence and 64% an increased 
ability to cope with life’s challenges. Further, 100% of the 
participants in our Gardening for the Mind programme across 
2021 reported an increased understanding of the activities that 
support emotional resilience and wellbeing. We expect between 
70 and 85 participants in Gardening for the Mind in 2023 to 
benefit from this support and a further 50-75 participants in the 
re-worked Community Kitchen sessions to also benefit from 
these greater skills and sense of mental health and wellbeing. 
 
Reduce social exclusion and enhance opportunities and 
quality of life 
Our target beneficiaries also include many groups who are 
particularly vulnerable to loneliness, isolation and social 
exclusion. Our Garden and projects are all designed to support 
people to build confidence, interact with others and form 
beneficial relationships. 
 
Our surveys in 2021-22 showed that 81% of Members feel a 
greater sense of connection to others since coming to the 
Garden. Further, 100% of the participants in our Gardening for 

Page 27



 
 

the Mind programme across 2021 reported increased comfort 
socialising with others. We expect between 70 and 85 
participants in Gardening for the Mind in 2023 to benefit from 
this support and a further 50-75 participants in the re-worked 
Community Kitchen sessions to also benefit from this greater 
sense of connection with others. 
 
Please see attached supporting document setting out detailed 
background information. 

Quote provided Yes 

Total project 
expenditure: 

Community Fridge and running costs - Glass door display fridge 
estimated at £550 and running costs for a year estimated at £50  
- £600.00 
Community Kitchen Project Leads' salaries plus NI and pension 
for 2 x staff to run 3 community kitchen sessions each week - 
£16,380.00 
Gardening for the Mind Project Lead salaries plus NI and 
pension for 1 x staff to run 2 gardening for the mind sessions 
each week - £5,513.00 
Total project expenditure - £22,493.00 
 

Total project income 
(addition sources of 
income including 
cash/in kind): 

Fees from paying contributors - Course fees from corporates, 
social prescribers and schools  (12 x courses £80pp x 4 people) 
- £3,960.00 
Share of general income - Share of membership fees, corporate 
giving, community giving, regular giving - £5,000.00 
Share of produce sales - £500.00 
Grants from third parties - £7,400.00 
Total project income £16,860.00 

Funding request: £5,600.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



 
 

Reference: EAC034 

Organisation: Faversham Salvation Army 

Applicant Name: Bethany Munn – Leader of Faversham Salvation Army 

Status of 
organisation: 

Registered Charity  

Details of 
project/activity: 

Community Wardrobe is sustainable charity clothing bank. We 
hold school uniforms for all Faversham and surrounding 
villages,  including sports wear, coats, shoes and bags.  
We also hold coats, hats, gloves and scarves that are available 
for  children and adults. These can be accessed at our 
sessions, and we also have a rail at Faversham Foodbank so 
that their clients can access coats and winter items  during the 
necessary months.  
 
As this is not for profit but people we rely on the donations of 
pre-loved school uniforms, coats, winter accesseories, we have 
been blessed that over 50% of users bring in pre-loved items so 
we are self-supporting and sustaining.  It is important to us that 
these essential items are made available to anyone in our 
community who wants them, and there is no cost for individuals 
for the items that they take.  
 
If a family is in need they have and can be referred to us by the 
school , social services or other agencies, In the instance that 
we do not have all or part of the uniform they need if funds are 
available we have brought them uniform. This has been the 
case particularly for families with children starting the Abbey 
secondary school.  
 
We are now at the point where we need to expand and provide 
a permanent space for this initiative to enable families and 
individuals to have access weekly to what we store.   
 
This summer (2022) we supported 487 households with 
uniforms and additional school supplies. And it was evident that 
this relief from the large cost of school uniform was a relief for 
all - especially in this current crisis.  
 
As we move into the Autumn and Winter months we have 
launched our winter wardrobe and hope to give support for 
coats , hats, gloves and scarves for children and adults.  
We are also aiming towards working with local employments 
support groups to have a section of ‘smart’ business suits/ wear 
to give or lend to individuals for job interviews or new 
employment as this can be a significant barrier for some.  
 
Community Wardrobe’s aim and belief is that basics items such 
a coats and school uniforms should not cause financial stress 
for individuals or families, and that by providing the community 
wardrobe we can relieve this pressure.  
 

Page 29



 
 

We are also proud that this supports the environment and 
reduces waste of good quality clothing.  
 

Quote provided Estimates 

Total project 
expenditure: 

Back stock is kept in a storage unit in Dargate - £110.00 
Storage boxes, vacuum bags to protect uniform - £200.00 
Moveable clothing rails and shelving – £500.00 
If we do not have uniform we will seek to support in need 
families  - £150-£200 per child 
Promotion - signage leaflets and posters - £100.00 
Total project expenditure £1,300.00 

Total project income 
(addition sources of 
income including 
cash/in kind): 

Donations - some clients/users of CW donate in kind small 
change - £50.00 
In kind - we have been the beneficiaries of small local groups 
annual donation gift - £100.00 
Total project income £150.00 

Funding request: £1,150.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



 
 

Reference: EAC035 

Organisation: Brogdale CIC 

Applicant Name: Rebecca O’Neill - CEO 

Status of 
organisation: 

Social Enterprise 

Details of 
project/activity: 

Our project will look to work with vulnerable families in local 
community venues to provide food, signpost to support and be 
in a warm space. The project will work over the 5 months of the 
winter weather and have 2 key aspects.  Firstly, to have a 
building-based offer to provide a warm space for families to 
come into and secondly to go out into the community to deliver 
support to families in their home setting. 
  
Weekly family food and friendship sessions will be provided 
where families can come and get a nutritious meal, spend time 
together in a warm space and play board games.  The families 
can build rapport with the support staff and gain advice and 
guidance as to the services that may be able to help them 
where there is a financial need, mental health concern, 
provision of clothing for young people.  The project will aim to 
support social inequalities, improve wellbeing, link community 
organisations and offer support in the ‘cost of living’ crisis.  We 
are proposing to work with the Baptist church and the Umbrella 
centre to have central locations to attend in the Eastern 
area.  There will be 2 sessions a week (one we would seek 
match funding for) each lasting 2 hours.  There will be 2 paid 
staff members on duty at all times and we hope to have 
community volunteers to attend and support too.  Through 
coming to a central place and meeting with key workers the 
families will get to know staff and they them.  There will be 
opportunities to build report, build trust with vulnerable families 
and listen both with compassion and care and with the ability 
signpost to organisations and agencies to gain further help.  For 
some families help maybe being held up by the inability to 
complete necessary documentation, know about and 
understand the process to gain support or by a barrier of 
language or learning ability. It may be that we support with 
access to a computer or the internet. This project would support 
the most vulnerable through direct mentoring during the session 
and also have the ability to afterwards keep in touch to follow up 
on opportunities to gain support. 
 
The second part of the project would build on our excellent 
community links. Through working with the housing 
associations, we will identify specific families who are struggling 
and deliver targeted support packages to them.  We will go 
directly to them in their homes and offer to provide school 
uniform for young people, leaflets that provide contact details for 
various support agencies and emergency food items when 
needed. This door step service again will have staff who seek to 
build relationships, hear concerns and signpost with support to 
services. 

Page 31



 
 

  
All staff will be DBS checked, have training in safeguarding, 
health and safety, food hygiene and be experienced with 
working with vulnerable groups.  All venues and activities will be 
risk assessed.  We have public liability and indemnity, our own 
transport and good links into the community.  We would 
propose to link with local voluntary organisations, church 
groups, housing associations, schools and statutory 
organisations. The service would be advertised through the 
housing associations, local council and support 
groups.  Families would be able to self-refer and be referred by 
agencies.  
  
It is proposed that there will be one building-based session a 
week, 20 in total and 1 community delivery session a week in 
total 20, 40 face to face sessions across the 5 months of winter 
weather. 
  
  

Further information Safeguarding policy and risk assessment have been provided. 
 
The sessions will take place on Saturday lunchtimes based at 
Faversham Baptist Church, lower hall and in a venue in 
Faversham Town. 

Quote provided Estimates 

Total project 
expenditure: 

For 20 sessions 
2 workers with oncosts £16 an hour, 3 hours at venue = £96 1 
hour prep 2 with families and clear up = 20 x £32 x 3 = £1,920 
1 worker meal planning and shopping 1 hour per week to 
include for outreach sessions as well = 20 x £16 x 1 = £320 
venue 3 hours £20 per hour = 20 x £20 x 3 hours = £1200 
Food for 20 people at £6 a meal = 20 x £6 x 20 = £2400 
Insurance, monitoring admin, staff support 20 sessions @ £30 
per week £600 
For once a week for 20 weeks at location 
Total: £6440 
 
For 20 remote delivery sessions 
2 workers with oncosts £16 an hour, 2 hours delivery and clear 
up= £64 = 20 x £64  = £1,280 
Food for 20 people at £6 a meal = 20 x £6 x 20 = £2400 
Van fuel, use and insurance £30 per session x 20 = £600 
Management 1 hour per week £25 x 20 sessions = £500 
uniform approx = £1240 
Total = £6020 
 
Total project expenditure - £12,460.00 

Total project income 
(addition sources of 
income including 
cash/in kind): 

Management and van. 

Funding request: £12,460.00 

Page 32



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Matters arising from previous meetings
	Item 5 - Appendix 1 Flooding matters update

	10 Update on work plan
	Item 9 - Appendix 1 scoring sheet
	Item 9 - Appendix 2 EAC Funding Scheme December 2022 - summary report


